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th
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Following the workshops held on: 08
th

, 10
th

and 14
th

December 2015, the answers on questions 

raised by the participants are presented in the table below.  

 

In addition, the table contains also the answers on questions received on the following e-mail 

address:cfcu@mif.gov.me. 

Q1 Could this Call for Proposals refer to insufficient competences or lack of skills of 

unemployed youth or it should be focused only on employment?  

A1 To ensure equal treatment of applicants, the Contracting Authority cannot give a 

prior opinion on specific activities/actions. The applicant needs to ensure that the 

action is closely aligned with the objectives and priorities of the Call for Proposals as 

defined in the Section 1.2., as well as with the eligible actions and eligible activities 

(Section 2.1.4) 

Q2 Is there a possibility to give daily allowances and reimburse travel costs to the 

training participants? 

A2 Refer to the section 2.1.5 (Eligibility direct cost) of the Guidelines for Applicants and 

Article 14.2 (Eligible direct costs) of the General Conditions. 

 

Under Article 14.2 of the General Conditions it is stated that the following costs shall 

also be eligible: 

 

“b) travel and subsistence costs for staff and other persons taking part in the Action, 

provided they do not exceed those normally borne by the Beneficiary(ies) according 

to its rules and regulations, or the rates published by the European Commission at the 

time of such mission if reimbursed on the basis of simplified cost options”. 

Q3 Is there a limit referring to value of the contract for which it is not necessary to 

undertake the procurement procedure? 

A3 The procurement by grant beneficiaries needs to be implemented in line with the 

provisions of Annex IV to the grant contract.  
The Beneficiary may decide to apply the procurement procedures set forth in the Practical 

Guide. If these procedures are correctly followed the principles above will be deemed 

complied with.  

If using the provisions of the Practical Guide the following will apply: contracts of a 
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value of 20.000 € or less can be awarded on the basis of single tender. For contracts 

of equal or below 2.500€ the beneficiary may simply pay against invoices without 

prior acceptance of the tender.  

 

Q4 Is the study visit abroad eligible as an activity under this Call for Proposals? 

A4 For the list of eligible activities please refer to the Guidelines for Applicants (point 

2.1.4).  

Study visit abroad could be considered as an eligible activity, if clear relation to the 

action, as well as to the priorities and objectives of the Call for Proposals is 

demonstrated.  

Q5 Do the international licenses have precedence over the national licenses? 

A5 In terms of eligibility of applicant licensed education and training providers from 

Montenegro and eligible countries are eligible (see point 2.1.1 of the GfA). If 

proposed for financing such institutions would need to provide as supporting 

documents a copy of License for publicly approved education programme in case of 

applying to implement an education programme. The GfA does not indicate any 

precedence of the (national/international) licences. 

Q6 Is it acceptable that two different municipalities which apply to this Call for 

Proposals have the same or similar project?   

A6 The evaluation committee will assess each of the received applications individually, 

observing the quality of the specific proposal.  

Q7 If the Municipality applies as a lead applicant how it should specify budget costs 

for a project manager if he/she will be working full time on a project and at the 

same time is an employee of the Municipality? 

A7 From the perspective of the project it needs to be ensured that the member of the 

project team is working in the project as proposed in the application. The work needs 

to be recorded by time-sheets. In this sense no overlapping with regular activities is 

allowed. A participating applicant would want to ensure internally that this is 

facilitated (in case of municipalities for example, the relevant authority (decision-

making level) in the Municipality could pass a decision that the employee will for the 

duration of the project work on the project activities). 

Q8 Is it mandatory to specify reserves in the project budget? 

A8 The applicants may propose contingency reserve up to 5% of direct eligible costs.  

Q9 Is it mandatory to specify budget costs for external audit? 

A9 Expenditure verification report is required with the final report for grants exceeding 

100.000 €. The costs of such verifications are considered as eligible cost under the 

action. In case of the need (grants above 100.000 €) the applicant would indicate this 

cost under the main budget heading 5. Other costs, services.  

Q10 Is it necessary to specify in the project proposal or budget on which activities or 

for which costs the obligatory 10% of co-financing of the applicants will be 

allocated? 



 

 

 

 

The answers on questions received on e-mail address cfcu@mif.gov.me 

Q13 In A17 of Questions and Answers file published on Europe Aid website, we read 

that Applicants are allowed to propose non-certified programmes, to (for 

example vocational training for known employer). What is intended with known 

employer? 

A13 The definition provided in the list of Questions and Answers refers to vocational 

training with clear and aimed perspective for employment – applicants demonstrating 

linkage between training programmes and needs of sector/known employers.The term 

known employer is in line with the Law on employment and exercising the right of 

unemployment insurance (“OfficialGazette of Montenegro” No. 14/10, 45/12, 61/13, 

A10 No. The 10% of co-financing of the applicants will be indicated at the end of the 

project through reporting (final financial report). 

Q11 Is the purchase of groceries to be used as a part of training of cooks, for 

example, eligible as a cost falling under the 10%limit criteria set for purchase of 

equipment in the Guidelines for Applicants? If yes, where in the Budget should 

we state it? 

A11 Groceries, if used only as consumables for the training, may not be considered as 

supplies and then, this limit of 10% should not be applied. The applicant is therefore 

recommended to use in the presentation of similar items the ‘’unit-cost’’ options,  

that cover all or certain specific categories of eligible costs which can be clearly 

identified and are expressed in amounts per unit (i.e. all cost per trainee). Please see 

Annex K for more information. 

To ensure equal treatment of applicants, the Contracting Authority cannot give a 

prior opinion on specific proposed costs. For list of eligible/ineligible costs please 

refer to the guidelines for applicants (point 2.1.5).  

Q12 While preparing the budget and when defining the price of a specific item of 

equipment, for example, does the price defined have to be the exact one or there 

is certain flexibility later when the procurement is completed?   

A12 As regards the prices of specific items the unit-rates presented in the project budget 

are considered an estimation of actual costs that will be incurred during the 

implementation. In this sense the budget is flexible.   

According to the Annex II: General Conditions applicable to EU financed grant 

contracts (Article 9.4) in case of transfer of items within the same main budget 

headings and transfer between main budget headings of 25% or less of the amount 

originally entered, in concern to each main heading, the Coordinator may amend the 

budget and Description of Action and inform the CA accordingly, in writing at the 

latest in the next report. 
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20/15).  

Q14 On the page 36 of Grant application form is required EuropeAid ID number 

however in the guidelines is written that PADOR registration is not required 

therefore we would like to ask you to clarify where can we get that EuropeAid 

ID number. 

A14 Despite the fact that the column referring to the EuropeAid number is indicated on 

the page 36 of the Grant Application Form, the column in matter should be left blank, 

considering that the PADOR registration is not required under this Call for Proposals.  

Q15 In case an accredited Training Centre applies to the Call proposing a Training 

activity, is it compulsory to provide a specific Qualification relating to publicly 

approved education programme or a different training with a Certificate of 

Attendance reporting all the competences acquired could be provided, too? 

A15 The applicants are allowed to propose certified (publicly approved) and non-certified 

programmes (for example vocational training for known employer), providing that 

the action corresponds to the priorities and objectives of this Call for Proposals. 

In case that a proposed action deals with accredited institutions of publicly approved 

educational programme(s) and the subject of the project is implementation of such 

programme(s), the applicants will be required to submit the license as a part of the 

supporting documentation, in case they are provisionally selected or put on the 

reserve list. 

In case of non-certified programmes such documentation is not required.  

Q16 Is a training course addressed to women and young people an eligible activity? 

In case we plan this course is it also possible to involve Italian Teachers going to 

Montenegro? 

A16 To ensure equal treatment of applicants, the Contracting Authority cannot give a 

prior opinion on the eligibility of lead applicants, co-applicants and affiliated 

entity(ies), or an action/activity. 

 

Please refer to the section 2.1.4. Eligible actions: actions for which an application 

may be made(“types of activities”) of the Guidelines for Applicants, applicable to 

this Call for Proposals. 

Q17 According to the Special Conditions template provided in the Annexes of the 

Application package and provisions stipulated in Article 4.2. related to financial 

guarantees for grants value 60.000 EUR and more, this financial guarantee will 

be required for all grants, since the minimum amount for the grants is 60.000 

EUR.  

Can you confirm that this provision (Article 4.2.) from the Special Condition 

will not be altered during the contracting phase i.e. must all grantees submit 

financial guarantee equal to amount of the pre-finance payment together with 

the Request for Payment? 

A17 If the grant exceeds 60.000,00 € the financial guarantee is requested for the amount 

of the initial pre-financing payment.  



 

The guarantee shall be denominated in euro, conforming to the model in Annex VIII 

and provided by an approved bank or financial institution established in one of the 

Member States of the European Union. This guarantee shall remain in force until its 

release by the Contracting Authority when the payment of the balance is made. 

However, as indicated in the section 15.8 of the General Conditions, the pre-

financing guarantee shall not be required from a non-profit organisation, an organisation 

which has signed a framework partnership agreement with the European Commission, a 

government department or public body. 

Q18 If an activity is important for the achievement of the objectives and results of the 

action and involves target groups from Montenegro, is it possible to implement 

it outside Montenegro? 

A18 As indicated in the Section 2.1.4. Eligible actions: actions for which an application 

may be made (“location”) of the Guidelines for Applicants “Actions must take place 

in Montenegro”.  

However, as indicated in the same Section 2.1.4. (“definition“) of the Guidelines for 

Applicants, “An action is composed of a set of activities”. If an activity demonstrates 

a clear relation to the action, as well as to the priorities and objectives of the Call for 

Proposals, it may be implemented abroad.  

For the list of eligible activities, please refer to the Guidelines for Applicants (point 

2.1.4).  

Q19 We would like to know if there is any way or possibility to let the potential 

project applicants to know us in order they can count on us to be their partners? 

A19 To ensure equal treatment of applicants, the Contracting Authority cannot give a 

prior opinion on the eligibility of lead applicants, co-applicants and affiliated 

entity(ies), or an action/activity nor advice on partnership. 

Q20 Would study visit to neighbouring countries be an eligible activity, having in 

mind that Guidelines for applicants prescribes "Actions must take place in 

Montenegro." 

A20 Please refer to A18. 
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